
DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 1 of 30 

 

TOWN OF APEX 1 
TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION   2 

TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2023 3 
3:30 P.M.  4 

The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, June 20, 2023 at 3:30 p.m. at the 5 
Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina. 6 

This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 7 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel:  8 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=PSWZ9vNnsHg 9 

 10 

[ATTENDANCE] 11 

 12 
Elected Body  13 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)  14 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Audra Killingsworth  15 
Councilmember Brett Gantt  16 
Councilmember Ed Gray  17 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey 18 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman (left the meeting early – see note in the minutes) 19 
Absent: None 20 

 21 
Town Staff  22 
Town Manager Catherine Crosby 23 
Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis  24 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John  25 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone 26 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe 27 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman  28 
Deputy Town Clerk Ashley Gentry  29 
Information Technologies Director Erika Sacco 30 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below.  31 

 32 

[COMMENCEMENT] 33 

 Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 3:36 p.m. and led the Pledge of 34 
Allegiance.  35 

 Town Manager Crosby said the meeting today was simply a status update for 36 
Council, and all of the projects would need to come back to Council in the future. 37 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=PSWZ9vNnsHg


DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 2 of 30 

 

[ITEM NO. 1 – ADVANCED METERING INFRASTRUCTURE (AMI) UPDATE] 1 

Assistant Town Manager Stone gave updates regarding the AMI upgrade. He said 2 
they hope to have a contract in place within the next month. He said his team has worked 3 
really hard on getting terms that are good for the town. He said once the contract is in place, 4 
they will begin implementing infrastructure improvements and testing the meters to ensure 5 
accuracy, before rolling them out to utility customers.  6 

Councilmember Gantt asked if the new builds in the past two years have had these 7 
installed. 8 

Assistant Town Manager Stone said what has been put on those builds has been 9 
completely different technology from this. He said this new technology will no longer require 10 
the drive by, he said the actual water meters will still be compatible, but they will need to 11 
replace the electronic components in the older models to have them work with the AMI. He 12 
said all components would need to be switched out for electric meters.  13 

Councilmember Mahaffey said this sounds like a big project, and asked if the town 14 
would be able to get 26,000 meters.  15 

Assistant Town Manager Stone said once the contract goes through, it would be 16 
about 12 months before rollout is able to begin to allow time to get the base system running 17 
and have everything get verified. He said after that, it would be a two-year (or less) process to 18 
get all of the units switched out. He said contractually the vendor would have to be done 19 
within that two-year window after system verification.  20 

Councilmember Zegerman asked if that would mean the total time was two years 21 
from when the contract was signed. 22 

Assistant Town Manager Stone said it would be two years from when the system was 23 
accepted by the town, which would mean about three years total from when the contract was 24 
signed.  25 

Councilmember Mahaffey said that didn’t sound that bad to him, and that he would 26 
be worried if this was something that could take up to a decade. 27 

Assistant Town Manager Stone said the delay for this project ended up being good 28 
because it allowed time for IT to work out the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system. 29 

Councilmember Mahaffey wanted to clarify that currently the drive by system was 30 
able to read the meter electronically, and that is wasn’t a proprietary technology. 31 

Assistant Town Manager Stone said all systems are proprietary, this is just a different 32 
vendor with a different technology. 33 

Councilmember Mahaffey asked if these would be compatible with each other as it 34 
was rolling out, or if there would be a need to track which customers had which system and 35 
use different methods for both.  36 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 3 of 30 

 

Assistant Town Manager Stone said there will be a meter data management system 1 
on the next Council agenda, and that would help in organizing the data from the different 2 
sources to allow it all to be integrated into the new ERP. 3 

Councilmember Gantt wondered if people would be notified when meter switch outs 4 
would be occurring, so they weren’t scared by someone coming to their home unexpectedly. 5 

Assistant Town Manager Stone said there will be a whole communication plan 6 
before the meter rollout happens with all of that information. 7 

 8 

[ITEM NO. 2 – ENTERPRISE RESOURCES PLANNING SYSTEM (ERP) UPDATE] 9 

IT Director Erika Sacco gave an overview presentation regarding the Enterprise 10 
Resource Planning (ERP) Assessment Project 11 

[ERP - SLIDE 1] 12 

 13 

 14 

 15 

 16 

 17 

 18 

 19 

 20 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 4 of 30 

 

[ERP - SLIDE 2] 1 

 2 

[ERP - SLIDE 3] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 5 of 30 

 

[ERP - SLIDE 4] 1 

 2 

Councilmember Zegerman left the meeting at 3:47 PM. 3 

[ERP - SLIDE 5] 4 

 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 6 of 30 

 

[ERP - SLIDE 6] 1 

 2 

[ERP - SLIDE 7] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 7 of 30 

 

[ERP - SLIDE 8} 1 

 2 

[ERP - SLIDE 9] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 8 of 30 

 

[ERP - SLIDE 10] 1 

 2 

[ERP - SLIDE 11] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 9 of 30 

 

[ERP - SLIDE 12] 1 

 2 

[ERP - SLIDE 13] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 10 of 30 

 

[ERP - SLIDE 14] 1 

 2 

[ERP - SLIDE 15] 3 

 4 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if these were all the same as far as importance goes. 5 

 Director Sacco said the town wants to keep all of these functionalities, but that they 6 
could use multiple vendors for different functions if the integrations were smooth with each 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 11 of 30 

 

other. She said some of the vendors who could not offer certain functionalities could pair up 1 
with another that does, so the possibilities are broader than just one company. 2 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if the 0’s meant they couldn’t offer it and couldn’t 3 
integrate with another company/software. 4 

 Director Sacco said that just mean they didn’t offer a functionality themselves, and 5 
that potential integration capabilities weren’t assessed at this stage. 6 

 Councilmember Gantt said he was surprised these companies didn’t all have at least 7 
moderate capabilities in all of these capacities, considering so many municipalities have all of 8 
these services.  9 

 Director Sacco said some of these companies are very niche, and have specified 10 
roles. She said there weren’t as many options that broadly covered all government services.  11 

 Councilmember Mahaffey asked what consideration was given to training and 12 
integration for staff with these new products, and if the upgrade version of what the town 13 
currently uses would be simpler.  14 

 Director Sacco said it was going to be sunset by the company that bought it, so the 15 
new version is going to be different anyway.  16 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said this seems like a massive project. 17 

 Director Sacco said it is, and the care that has been taken throughout will be 18 
discussed as well. She said they have been working on this for a long time, and are working 19 
to ensure the data can be migrated cleanly when the transition begins. She said whoever they 20 
go with has to be able to provide training and support moving forward.  21 

[ERP - SLIDE 16] 22 

 23 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 12 of 30 

 

[ERP - SLIDE 17] 1 

 2 

[ERP - SLIDE 18] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 13 of 30 

 

[ERP - SLIDE 19] 1 

 2 

 Councilmember Gantt wanted to hear about how future projects (such as the AMI) 3 
were considered as part of the capabilities for these vendors. 4 

 Director Sacco said this was baked in, and that the new systems such as the AMI will 5 
be able to work with this new ERP system. 6 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if these would allow updates to come more quickly with 7 
the data. 8 

 Director Sacco said yes, it would allow updates to be much more frequent, possibly 9 
coming in every 5-10 minutes for the AMI, rather than once daily.  10 

 Councilmember Gray said he was extremely impressed at the progress made for 11 
such a complex project. He asked what the plan was to inform the public about potential 12 
hiccups during the transition period, and what the plan is for how to mitigate issues. 13 

 Director Sacco said there will be consultants that help the town throughout the 14 
process, and that support for problems that arise is baked into the contracts in some ways. 15 
She said there will likely be some soft launches, but there will be issues. She said there’s data 16 
management people, consultants, and the vendors who will all be able to work with IT to 17 
support this rollover. 18 

 Councilmember Mahaffey asked what the transition would be like, and if at some 19 
point in time a task could be done on system or the other. He said he was worried if the 20 
transition occurred and something critically needed to be fixed, would they be able to revert 21 
back to the old system in the meantime.  22 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 14 of 30 

 

 Director Sacco said yes, they will be concurrent, and there will plenty of time to have 1 
both systems working during the transition period.  2 

 Councilmember Mahaffey asked how employees felt about this. 3 

 Director Sacco said they have been involved since the very beginning, and have been 4 
taking their time to ensure people are ready for the change. 5 

 Town Manager Crosby said there will always be people who don’t want to change, 6 
as they’ve been used to one thing for so long. She said there have been some people who 7 
were involved in both the AMI and the ERP process, and will be a part of the CSS process.  8 

 Deputy Town Manager Purvis said everybody will be trained on these new systems 9 
to ensure everyone is prepared for the hard changeover date in the future.  10 

 Councilmember Mahaffey asked what level of support contracts include for the 11 
beginning of the transition. 12 

 Director Sacco said there is 24-hour support for one year after the transition, and the 13 
vendor will be directly taking support calls from residents who are having trouble with the 14 
system during that time period.  15 

[Item No. 3 – CUSTOMER SERVICE SYSTEM (CSS) PROJECT] 16 

Assistant Town Manager Demetria John gave an overview presentation on the upcoming 17 
Customer Service System (CSS) Update.  18 

[CSS – SLIDE 1] 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 15 of 30 

 

[CSS – SLIDE 2] 1 

 2 

[CSS – SLIDE 3] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 16 of 30 

 

[CSS – SLIDE 4] 1 

 2 

[CSS – SLIDE 4] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 17 of 30 

 

[CSS – SLIDE 5] 1 

 2 

 3 

 4 

 5 

[CSS – SLIDE 6] 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 18 of 30 

 

[CSS – SLIDE 7] 1 

 2 

[CSS – SLIDE 8] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 19 of 30 

 

[CSS – SLIDE 9] 1 

 2 

[CSS – SLIDE 10] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 20 of 30 

 

[CSS – SLIDE 11] 1 

 2 

[CSS – SLIDE 12] 3 

 4 

 Councilmember Gray asked if they had the demographic data on these responses. 5 

 Director Sacco said she would get with communications to find out that information.  6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 21 of 30 

 

 [CSS – SLIDE 13] 1 

 2 

[CSS – SLIDE 14] 3 

 4 

 Assistant Town Manager John said getting the demographic information for these 5 
surveys was important to analyze things such as language barriers, disability impacts, and 6 
accommodation needs in order to see how to go forward with this process. 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 22 of 30 

 

 [CSS – SLIDE 15] 1 

 2 

[CSS – SLIDE 16] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 23 of 30 

 

[CSS – SLIDE 17] 1 

 2 

[CSS – SLIDE 18] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 24 of 30 

 

[CSS – SLIDE 19] 1 

 2 

[CSS – SLIDE 20] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 25 of 30 

 

[CSS – SLIDE 21] 1 

 2 

[CSS – SLIDE 22] 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 26 of 30 

 

[CSS – SLIDE 23] 1 

 2 

[CSS – SLIDE 24] 3 

 4 

  5 

 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 27 of 30 

 

[CSS – SLIDE 25] 1 

 2 

Councilmember Mahaffey asked how far behind Cary and Holly Springs the town is.  3 

 Director Sacco said that would be discussed soon. 4 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if most of the issues staff describes with customers are 5 
things that occur repeatedly, or if issues are more isolated. 6 

 Director Sacco said she’s only able to speak to what data says, and some things are 7 
trash-related problems, but that the same customer has different issues or different 8 
customers have the same issue, and not the same exact problem instance recurring. She said 9 
the goal is to have a centralized location for people to be able to submit requests for 10 
assistance and report problems. 11 

 Assistant Town Manager John said a lot of times residents will complain about 12 
numbers leading to no answers and a “black hole” being created. She said centralizing the 13 
phone number should help with this. 14 

 Town Manager Crosby said GFL was the biggest call the town got, and that created a 15 
challenge because they were a vendor, so the town could not fully track the problem 16 
resolution. She said Public Works Director John Mullis has done a great job ensuring staff are 17 
able to track issues to resolution through a good relationship with GFL. She said he is also 18 
looking at ways in which the town could respond quicker to those kinds of issues.  19 

 Councilmember Gantt said he has felt that relying on vendors created a situation 20 
where some of these problems were unsolvable to a degree.  21 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 28 of 30 

 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said they service so many properties that there is a 1 
large chance of making some mistake in any week, but that the complaint rate was about 2 
0.4%. He said it is inevitable to get a certain number of complaints as the town grows 3 
because of the scale of the services provided. He said the town still has to be responsible for 4 
tracking these and doing what they can to make things better. 5 

 Mayor Gilbert asked how soon the old main phone number would go away with the 6 
new system. 7 

 Director Sacco said the new number could be whatever the town chooses, and it 8 
could be the one that is most well-known. 9 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he felt a 311 system was cool. 10 

 Town Manager Crosby said they had some conversations about seeing if that could 11 
be done. 12 

 Director Sacco said it was a lot of work to set a system like that up for landlines, and a 13 
completely different task if it was to be set up for cellular as well. 14 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he was excited that there would be a CRM for the 15 
town and things were centralized and tracked. He said he thinks the issue is that people feel 16 
like they can’t get connected with the right place for help with their complaint easily.  17 

 18 

[CSS – SLIDE 26] 19 

 20 

 21 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 29 of 30 

 

[CSS – SLIDE 27] 1 

 2 

 Assistant Town Manager John discussed the implementation of this program, as 3 
shown above. She said the community engagement position, CSS manager, and customer 4 
service ambassadors in the next several months, after the next fiscal year begins. She said this 5 
group will coordinate the beginning of this rollout. She said she hopes there would be at 6 
least a soft launch of the program by the Spring of 2024. She added that training and 7 
onboarding was critical, and Panorama could help with that. 8 

 Councilmember Gantt asked how many employees this would require to keep things 9 
centralized as the town grows. 10 

 Town Manager Crosby said there may need to be more than just the original core 11 
team for the CSS eventually, but that they would often work with someone from a specific 12 
department to resolves matters, even if each department doesn’t have a position specifically 13 
made for that customer service purpose. 14 

 Assistant Town Manager John said Panorama presented three options, and that 15 
they recommended the centralized model for the town. She said a decentralized option was 16 
on the table, but keeping it in-house and centralized was what they chose, and that 17 
departments would continue to field calls as CSS staff get up to speed with each 18 
department’s normal calls.  19 

 Mayor Gilbert said he appreciated all the work that went into these programs. He 20 
said he wanted to ask for a motion to go into closed session to discuss a personnel matter. 21 

 22 



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 30 of 30 

 

 1 
[CLOSED SESSION] – Added   2 

 3 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth, seconded by 4 

Councilmember Gray, to enter into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(6) – 5 
Personnel.  6 
  7 

VOTE: UNANIMOUS (4-0), with Councilmember Zegerman absent.  8 
 9 
Council moved into closed session at 4:48 p.m.  10 
 11 
Council returned to open session at 5:27 p.m.  12 
 13 
[ADJOURNEMENT] 14 
  15 

Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 5:27 p.m.  16 
 17 
 18 
 19 
 20 

Jacques K. Gilbert 21 
Apex, Mayor  22 

 23 
 24 
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 25 
Apex, Town Clerk  26 
 27 
Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman.  28 
 29 
Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2023. 30 


